S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Dreamfolks Services Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks Services Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dreamfolks Services Limited
(formerly known as Dreamfolks Services Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of profit and loss, including the statement of other
comprehensive income, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the standalone
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including the statement of other
comprehensive income, the cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
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(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

tv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: {)0756N

/"M

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership Number: 087294
UDIN: 22087294AKJJUES5288
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 06, 2022
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report to the members of Dreamfolks Services Limited (formerly known as
Dreamfolks Services Private Limited) (“the Company”) of even date

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)(@a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(i)(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

()(b) All property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous
year in accordance with a planned program of verifying them every year which is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(i)(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in note 4 and note 6 to the
standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(i)(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (PPE) (including right of use
assets (ROU)) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022 and carried on with values of
PPE and ROU at cost consistent with the previous year.

(1)(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii)(b) The Company has sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
from bank during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. However, as per
the information and explanation given to us and as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, the
Company has not utilized the sanction limit accordingly quarterly returns/statements has not been filed
by the Company with such bank.

(iii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided loans,
advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) to
clause (iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, regquirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company. '
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(vi) The Company is not in the business GIARIEBLARERHYIVGF provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (2) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been delays in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(vii) (b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix)(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(ix) (d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.,
The Company doesn’t have any associate or joint venture. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary. The Company doesn’t have any associate or joint venture. Hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(xi)(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Ce rernment.
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(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii)The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(xiv)(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi)(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and there were no
issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx)(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This-matter has been disclosed in note 46 to
the financial statements.
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(xx)(b) All amounts that are unspent widéFSEBHOACGHUYFAECtion 135 of Companies Act, pursuant to
any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance of with provisions of sub
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 46 to the financial

statements.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 000756N

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership Number: 087294

UDIN: 22087294AKJJUE5288
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 06, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Dreamfolks Services Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks Services Private
Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dreamfolks Services
Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks Services Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
[based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedufé\f0RSBIAN AUl ¥ Tdence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31,2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 000756N

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership Number: 087294

UDIN: 22087294AKJJUES5288
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 06, 2022
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Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

. As at As at
kit Notes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non - current assets

Property, plant and equipiment 4A 2977 3830

Capital work in progress 4B - 043

Intangible assets 5 4547 261

Right of use assets 4A 64.17 73.66
Investment property 6 17.92 271.01
Financial assets
Investiments 7 0.05 0.05
Other financial assets 8(a) 27.19 24.72
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 12.38 775
Other non-current assets 11(a) 210.06 186.61
Total non - current assets 407,01 605.14
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 12 906.56 39549
Cash and cash equivalents 13 10.87 99.92
Other bank balances 14 134.72 -
Other financial assets 8b) 82.74 5091
Other current assets 11({b) 61,97 19.04
Current tax assets (net) 9 82.92 54 55
Total current assets 1,279.78 619.91
Total assets 1,686.79 1,225.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 104 .50 47.50
Other equity 16 717.18 595.57
Total equity 821.68 643.07
Liabilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17(a) 10.22 12 85
Lease liabilities 18(a) 64 30 6333
Provisions 21(a) 16.96 18.36
Total non-current liabilities 91.48 94.54
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17(b) 253 7.34
Lease liabilities 18(b) 5.46 11.10
Trade payables
(i) Total outs.tanding dues of micro enterprises and 19 42227 21181
small enterprises
(¢D)] ToFaI outstanding dues o_f creditors other than micro 19 290.80 97 10
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 20 1394 2653
Other current liabilities 22 3584 130 14
Provisions 21(b) 2.79 3.42
Total current liabilities 773.63 487.44
Total equity and liabilities 1,686.79 1.225.05

Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For 8.8, KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Dreamfolks Services Limited

FRN - 000756N CIN: l»'S[} WDL2OSPTC177181 '1[
w‘ v AJ,V

Sunil Wahal Liberatha Peter Kallat Mukesh Yadav

Partner X Managing Director Director

Membership No: (18724 DIN: 06849062 DIN: 01105819

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place New Delhi

Date: June 06, 2022 Date: June 06, 2022 Date: June 06, 2022

O Lt ' GDQ{ l\
: o B
Giya Diwaan Rangdli \agarwal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

For the year

For the year

Particulars Notes ended ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 23 2,824.98 1,056.33
Other income 24 14.89 24.74
Total income 2,839.87 1,081.07
Expenses
Cost of services 25 2,372.66 875.41
Employee benefits expenses 26 165.53 126.39
Finance costs 27 14.31 7.45
Depreciation and amortization expenses 28 21.29 15.54
Other expenses 29 61.37 58.29
Total expenses 2,635.16 1,083.08
Profit / (loss) before tax 204.71 2.01)
Tax expense 31
Current tax 47.82 -
Tax expense related to earlier years 0.23 -
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (5.81) 12.49
Total tax expenses 42.24 12.49
Profit / (loss) after tax for the year 162.47 (14.50)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation 4.68 3.17
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (1.18) (0.80)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 3.50 2.37
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 165.97 (12.13)
Earnings / (Loss) per equity share 32
Basic 3.11 (0.28)
Diluted 298 (0.28)
2 2

Face value per share

Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial staiements.
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 Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

For the year

For the year

Net cash & cash equivalents

Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax 204.71 (2.01)
Adjustments :-
Depreciation / Amortization 2129 1554
Share based payment expenses (ESOP) 12.64 -
Assets written off 003 141
Provision for expected credit loss (0.08) 0.06
Bad debts 125 -
Finance costs 1431 731
Interest income 2.71) (13 89)
Profit on disposal of investment property (10.62) (9.06)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - (0.03)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 240.82 (0.67)
Adjustments for working Capital changes:
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables and other financial liabilities 391.56 (279.19)
Decrease in provisions and other payables (91 64) (10.95)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables and other financial assets (546.54) 28704
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (39.14) 48.21
Change in working capital (285.76) 45.11
Cash (used)/generated from operating activities post working capital changes (44.949) 44.44
Income taxes (paid)/received (76.42) 18.12
Net Cash used in Operating activities (A) (121.36) 62.56
. Cash flow from investing activities
Paid towards purchase of investment property (27.25) (359.03)
Paid towards purchase of property, plant & equipment (2.86) 0.45
Paid towards purchase of intangible assets (42.86) -
Proceeds from sale of investment property 263.71 76.16
Investment in bank deposits (134.72) -
Interest Received 2.71 13.89
Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities (B) 58.73 (268.53)
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of borrowings (7.44) (10.72)
Payment of lease liabilities (11,81) (197)
Other finance cost paid (7.17) (2.67)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C ) (26.42) (15.36)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) (89.05) (221 33)
Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance) 9992 32125
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance) 10.87 99,92
Change in cash & cash equivalents (89.05) (221.33)
Notes:
. As at As at
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash on hand 0.04 005
Balances with banks
- 1n current accounts 10.83 99 87
10.87 99.92




Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

2 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars g GHEaRsH flow Non cash changes As on
April 01, 2020 changes March 31, 2021
Non-current borrowings including 3091 (10.72) - 20.19
current maturities (Note 17)
Lease liabilities - (1.96) 76.39 74.43
. As on Net cash flow As on
s April 01, 2021 changes Non cash chianges March 31, 2022
Non-current borrowings including 20.19 (7.44) - 12.75
current maturities (Note 17)
Lease liabilities 74.43 (11.81) 7.14 69.76
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial stat ts.

As per our report of even date attached

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN — 000736N

nil Wahal
Partner
Membership No: 087294
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 06, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dreamfolks Services Limited |
CIN: U519}0;i)l.20ﬂ8l“l'(‘177181
Liberatha Peter Kallat Mu Yadav

Managing Director Director

DIN: 06849062 DIN: 01105819

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
‘Date: June 06, 2022 Date: June 06, 2022

/

. \ V) O~ ~
— -_1 )
Giya Diwaan Rangoli Agearwal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.No.: F401518 M.No.: A44096

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 06, 2022

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 06, 2022




Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Equity shares of INR 2 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up*

As at April 1, 2020 47.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 47.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year 57.00
As at March 31, 2022 104.50

* The face value of equity shares of the Company has been split from INR 10/- to INR 2/- per share with effect from September 10,
2021

B. Other equity

Particulars Reserve & surplus ESOP Reserve* Total
As at April 1, 2020 607.70 - 607.70
Movement during the year

-Loss for the year (14.50) - (14.50)

-Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 2.37 - 2.37
As at March 31, 2021 595.57 - 595.57
Movement during the year -

-Issue of bonus shares (57.00) - (57.00)

-Profit for the year 162.47 - 162.47

-Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 3.50 - 3.50

-Share based payment (ESOP) (refer note-40) - 12.64 12.64
As at March 31, 2022 704.54 12.64 717.18

* The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under
Employee stock option plan.

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
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Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

1.  Corporate Information

Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited) (the ‘Company’) primarily integrates global card networks
operating in India, card issuers, and corporate clients including airline companies with various airport lounge operators, transport operators and
other airport service providers on a unified technology platform. The Company facilitate customers of Clients access to the airport related services
including (i) lounges, (ii) food and beverage (iii) spa, (iv) meet and assist, (v), airport transfer (vi) transit hotels /nap room access, and (vii) baggage
transfer, (collectively, the Services).]

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at 22, DDA Flats, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Road, Malviya Nagar New Delhi- 110017 India. The company has been converted
from a private limited to a public limited company with effect from November 23, 2021.

These financial statements are adopted by the Board of Directors during the meeting held on June 06, 2022.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company is prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended time to time and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule
I1I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value or revalued amount:
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments), and
e Contingent consideration. The company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.

The accounting policies as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to all the periods
presented in the said financial statements.

2.2 Critical Accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a, material adjustment within the next financial
year except for as disclosed in these financial statements.

Information about significant areas of estimation /uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the financial statements are as follows: -

’

Impairment of financial assets

The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on policy for expected loss provision based on experiential realisations, current
and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the
Company deals with and the countries where it operates.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemig relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial
statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial
statements, used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economie-forgcasts and expects
that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVIbS ¢ Company’s financial slalfmsn_lé rira},g iffer from that
estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the ass
plant and equipment are determined by the management based on lechnical

ient b g[t nal team and external adyis Harge in respect
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Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The Company believes that the useful life best represents the period over which the Company expects to use these assets.

Contingent liabilities

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Income Taxes

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews
at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could
lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Leases

Judgment required to ascertain lease classification, lease term, incremental borrowing rate, lease and non-lease component and impairment of
ROU

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Current versus non- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the financial statements of assets and liabilities based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:
e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
o  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e [tis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Jtisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Ttisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also its functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates and is normally the currency in which the Company primarily generates and expends cash.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency rate fluctuations relating to
monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the year-end rates. The net gain or loss arising on restatement/ settlement is recorded in Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of the transaction. The related revenue and expense are recognized using the same exchange rate.

3.3 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

place either:
1. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
2. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal\g
market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.



Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
1. Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
2. Level 2-— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
3. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers may be required for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided on the basis of nature
of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards

are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing
the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also
compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property,
plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including
regular servicing, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major
components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes
(other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended
use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for
its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on fixed assets after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase
in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. The Company depreciates property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each
financial year end. The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sale
proceeds and carrying value of such item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5 Intangible assets

Design, development and software costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that associated future economic
benefits would flow to the Company. All other costs on the aforementioned are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment. The estimated useful life of an identifiable
intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as
the stability of the industry and known technological advances). Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each
financial year end.

Class of assets Useful life
Computer Software 3 years

3.6 Investment property




Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of the investment properties are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years using written down value method from the date of original
purchase.

The company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Though the company measures investment properties using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in the
notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment properties the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for
measurement or disclosure purposes.

3.7 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided on the written down value method. The estimated useful life of each asset as prescribed under Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 and based on technical assessment of internal experts (after considering the expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence and understanding of past practices and general industry experience) are as depicted below:

' Particulars Estimated u_sei‘ul life
L;nd and bu-ﬂdil_l_gs . 60 _
Furni‘;re- & fixtures - | 10 . - _
.___E:O_m . e e ey : |3 e — = -
[Ofﬁce eq mpment ...... = i __3_5Years i S i s
fl i i = =

| Motor vehicles

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Lease hold Improvements are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

3.8 Leases

The Company’s leased assets primarily consist of leases for office space. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception
of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

= the contract involves the use of an identified asset

»  the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

= the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

1. Right of use assets

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight -line basis over the term of the
lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying ;

Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflect that the Company excrcise a purchase
applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired :counts for any identified impairment I
accounting policy below on “Impairment of non- financial assets”. «\x%?“ EH&I o




Dreamfolks Services Limited (Formerly DreamFolks Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

2. Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset (or in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero) if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination or a purchase option. The interest cost on lease liability (computed using effective interest method), is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows. The Company has applied a practical expedient wherein the Company has ignored the requirement to separate non- lease components
(such as maintenance services) from the lease components. Instead, the Company has accounted for the entire contract as a single lease contract.

3.9 Revenue recognition

The Company has revenue from its clients. The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies performance obligations under the terms of its
contracts, and control of its services is transferred fo its client’s users in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive
from its client in exchange for those services. This process involves identifying the client contract, determining the performance obligations in the
contract, determining the contract price, allocating the contract price to the distinet performance obligations in the contract, and recognizing
revenue when the performance obligations have been satisfied.

The Company through its platform allows transactions between the consumers of its clients and service operators enlisted with the platform. The
Company earns revenue when the consumers of its clients utilize services such as Lounge Access, Meet and Assist, Airport Transfers, Food and
Beverages, Door-step Baggage and Spa & Wellness either through the DreamFolks App, DreamFolks Card, Issuer’s Card, Issuer’s Website,
Issuer’s web or mobile Application (App) or Interactive voice response (IVR).

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due

Cash received before the goods and services are delivered is recognised as a contract liability.

Financing Components: The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money

Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity and compensated absences.

Long-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution plans: The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the

employees.

Defined benefit plans: The Company has Defined Benefit Plan in the form of Gratuity. Gratuity fund is recognised by the Income-tax authorities
and administered through an Insurance Fund. Liability for Defined Benefit Plans is provided on the basis of valuations, as at the balance sheet
date, carried out by an independent actuary. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using discount
rate (interest rates of government bonds) that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the gratuity. Remeasurement gains and losses
arising from expetience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ (net of taxes) in the statement of changes in equit. ungmmq
sheet. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net deﬁned benefit hablllty or asset )

Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expeetedio be paid in exchange for the services rendered by emplu
during the year when the employees render the servic
expected to occur within twelve months after the en
compensated absences is accounted as under:
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*  in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated

absences; and
= in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

3.11 Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined
by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in share Options outstanding reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in

employee benefits expense.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit
and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and
is recognised in employee benefits expense.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the
entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
3.12 Taxes

3. Current income tax

Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, in accordance

with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside financial statements profit and loss is recognised outside financial statements profit and
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the statement of assets and liabilities after off-setting advance tax paid and
income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net
basis.

4. Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

"The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

] 1
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and defcrred tax is recogmsed in proﬂt or loss except to the extent that 1t relates to 1tems recogmsed in other LUII]EﬂQ}CH‘iFV&THL or
: &
i Pt
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The Company’s CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for the purposes of making operating decisions, allocating
resources, and evaluating financial performance. Our business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment, hence,
the disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS 108- 'Operating Segments'.

3.14 Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the
results would be anti-dilutive.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any splits and bonus
shares issues including for change effected prior to the approval of the financial Information by the Board of Directors.

3.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

1. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one are more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from
past event but is not recognised because either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognised

3.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss
are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

1. Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through statement of profit
and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market-place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

a. Classification and subsequent measurement:

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition) (i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and (ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for debt
investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition) (i) the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and (ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost
or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and other financial assets are
classified for measurement at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost of an instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriale, :
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

>

b. Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investr
statement of profit and loss.
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c.  Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.c.
removed from the Company’s financial statements of assets and liabilities) when: i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
or ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

d. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in
loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:
= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
= abreach of contract such as a default or past dues;
= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; - it is probable that
the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
=  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company follows ‘simplified approac’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime impairment pattern at each balance sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company
is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
=  theborrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or
= the financial asset is more than past due.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either pattially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to write-off. Howeyer, ﬁnan01al assets that are written off could still be su [ gnfarcement

activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recove amounts due.
Q\??‘\ MEH T4 Cr

2. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as [inancig
as appropriate.

a. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
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transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include Borrowings, Other Financial Liabilities, Trade Payables and Leases.

b.  Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. For financial liabilities that
are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income’. The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For
financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized
in profit or loss.

c. Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in statement
of profit and loss.

d.  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

3.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors,
an impairment loss is recognised, i.e. wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are Companyed together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each
CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To
determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of assets and liabilities comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined abovg, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.20 Cash flow statement
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Based on the nature of the event, the Company identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date on which the financial
statements are approved as ‘Adjusting Event’ and ‘Non-adjusting event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after
the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at
the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or because of their special nature. For non-adjusting events, the Company may provide
a disclosure in the financial statements considering the nature of the transaction.

3.22 Functional and presentation currency

The Company has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates, i.e., the functional currency, to
be Indian Rupees (INR). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest million up to two decimal places, unless otherwise stated. Consequent to rounding off, the numbers
presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute amounts.
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4B Capital Work in progress

Gross block

As at April 1, 2020 6.39
Additions 0.43
Capitalised during the year (6.39)
As at March 31, 2021 0.43
Additions -
Capitalised/transferred during the year (0.43)
As at March 31, 2022 -

CWIP ageing schedule as on March 31, 2021

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 043 - - - 0.43
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

For overdue projects-as on March 31, 2021

Particulars To be completed in

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

year years
Adani Project 0.43 - - = | 0.43
5 Intangible assets

Particulars Software
Gross block
As at April 12020 1.42
Additions 2.41
As at March 31 2021 3.83
Additions 43.81
Disposals/adjsutments (1.26)
As at March 31 2022 46.38

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 12020 0.24
Charge for the year 0.98
As at March 31 2021 1.22
Charge for the year 0.79
Disposals/adjsutments (1.10)
As at March 31 2022 0.91
Net block ———
As at March 31 2021 2.61

As at March 31 2022 45.47
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6 Investment Property
Building Land Total
As at April 12020 - - -
Additions . 458.12 458.12
Disposals/Transferred 1924 (205.95) (186.71)
As at March 31 2021 19.24 252.17 271.41
Additions - 168.47 168.47
Disposals/Transferred - (420.64) (420.64)
As at March 31 2022 19.24 - 19.24
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 12020 - -
Charge for the year 0.40 - 040
Assets sold/transferred - - -
As at March 31 2021 0.40 - 0.40
Charge for the year 0.92 0.92
Assets sold/transferred - -
As at March 31 2022 1.32 - 1.32
Net block
As at March 31 2021 18.84 252.17 271.01
As at March 31 2022 17.92 - 17.92
Fair value of investment properties
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Building 20.87 20.87
Land 252.36

Estimation of fair value

The Company’s investment properties consist of two commercial properties in India. The management has determined that the investment
properties consist of two classes of assets — office and retail — based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the fair values of the investment properties are INR 20.87 millions and INR 273.23 millions
respectively. These valuations are based on valuations performed by Chartered Surveyors & Co., an accredited independent valuer
Chartered Surveyors & Co. is a specialist in valuing these types of investment properties and is a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of
Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 A valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the International

Valuation Standards Committee has been applied

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or

develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements

Details of income and expenditure arising from Investment Properties

Rental income derived from investment properties

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment properties
that generating rental income

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment properties
that did not generate rental income

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses

Less — Depreciation
Profit/(loss) arising from investment properties before indirect expenses

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

31,2022 31, 2021
118 -
1.18
0.92 0.40
0.26 (0.40)
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7 Non - Current investments As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary (at cost)

Unquoted
Dreamfolks Hospitality Private Limited 9,000 equity shares (March 31, 2021 9,000 Equity shares of face value of 005 005
INR 10/- each)
0.05 0.05
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments = -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 005 005
Aggrepate amount of impairment in the value of investments -
As at As at
8 Other financial assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Non - current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits* 2719 2472
27.19 24.72
b) Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits 3617 28 86
Other receivables** 4110 2205
Unbilled receivabie 547 -
82.74 50.91
* Includes related party balance of INR 62 5 million (March 31, 2021: INR 62 5 million) net of IND AS impact, refer note 41
** Includes related party balance of INR 41 10 million (March 31, 2021 INR NIL million), refer note 41 and note 53
As at As at
9 Current tax assets (net) March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Income tax assets
Advance tax and TDS recoverable (net of provision for tax) 13074 54 55
130.74 54.55
Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (47.82) -
82.92 54.55
As at As at
10 Deferred tax assets (net) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 497 548
Lease liability 141 069
Property, plant and equipment 282 471
ESOP 318
Restatement of profit and loss . (315)
Expected credit loss - 0.02
12.38 7.75
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Opening as at Recognised in Recognised in Closing as at
. April 01, 2021 profit or loss other March 31, 2022
Description s
comprehensive
income
Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 548 067 (118) 497
Lease liability 069 072 - 141
Property, plant and equipment 471 (189) . 282
ESOP - 318 - 318
Restatement of profit and loss (315) 315 - -
Expected credit loss 002 (0 02) -
775 581 (118) 1238
(ii) Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Opening as at Recognised in Recognised in Closing as at
L April 01, 2020 profit or loss other March 31, 2021
Description 5
comprehensive
income
Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 587 041 (0 80) 548
Lease liability - 069 - 069
Property, plant and equipment 370 101 - 471
Restatement of profit and loss 1147 (14 62) - (315)
Expected credil loss 002 - 002

2104 (12 49) (180) 775
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As at As at
11 Other assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Non-current
Capital advances* 173 46 146 21
Prepaid security deposit 3660 40 40
210.06 186.61
b) Current
Advances to vendors 1092 213
Balance with statutory authorities 3693 315
Prepaid expenses 417 384
Advances to employees 060 049
Other advances 935 943
61.97 19.04
* Includes related party balance of INR 10 million (March 31, 2021:INR 10 million), refer note 41
As at As at
12 Trade receivables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 906.56 39557
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Less: ECL provision - (0.08)
906.56 395.49
Trade receivables ageing schedule - March 31, 2022
Particulars Less than 6 6 months to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1 year years
(1) Undisputed trade receivables — 906.31 022 003 - 906 56
considered good
(ii) Undisputed trade receivables - - - - -
—considered doubtful
(1)) Disputed trade receivables - - - - - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed trade receivables — - - - - -
considered doubtful
Total 906.31 0.22 0.03 - - 906.56
Trade receivables ageing schedule - March 31, 2021
Particulars Less than 6 6 months to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1 year years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — 394 50 101 0.06 - 39557
considered good
(ii) Undisputed trade receivables - . = a «
—considered doubtful
(ii1) Disputed trade receivables - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed trade receivables — . - - - -
considered doubtful
Total 394.50 1.01 0.06 - - 395.57
Movement of ECL provision:
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year

008 002
Amount accrued during the year - 006
Amount reversed during the year 0.08 -
Balance at the end of the year 0.00 0.08

As at As at

13 Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2022

March 31,2021

Balances with banks

- 1n current accounts 10 83 99 87

Cash in hand 004 005
10.87 99.92
As at As at

14 Oth k bal
Sy hEnklbRtances March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Balances with bank

- in deposit accounts with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 130 10

- Balance in Escrow Account for Corporate social responsibility 4.62 -

134,72
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15 Equity share capital

As at As at
March 31, 2022 h 31,20
Authorised equity share capital*
75,000,000 equity shares of INR 2 each (March 31, 2021: 5,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each) 150.00 50,00
150.00 50.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up*
52,250,000 equity shares of INR 2 each (March 31, 2021: 4,750,000 equity shares of INR 10 each) 104.50 47.50
104.50 47.50

* The face value of equity shares of the Company has been split from INR 10/- to INR 2/- per share with effect from September 10, 2021

Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
' As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 47,50,000 47.50 47,50,000 47.50
Share split during the year 1,90,00,000 - - -
Bonus issued during the year 2.85.00.000 57.00 - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,22,50,000 104.50 47,50,000 47.50

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having nominal value of INR 2/- each (March 31, 2021: Rs. 10/- each). Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensning Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled
to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the Shareholders.

(¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Name of the shareholder
% holding No of Shares % holding No of Shares
Liberatha Peter Kallat 33.00% 1,72,42,400 33.00% 15,67,500
Dinesh Nagpal 33.00% 1,72,42,400 33.00% 15,67,500
Mukesh Yadav 34.00% 1,77,64,800 34.00% 16,15,000

(d) Details of shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares Amount % change
Liberatha Peter Kallat 1,72,42,400 34.48 -
Dinesh Nagpal 1,72,42,400 34.48 -
Mukesh Yadav 1,77,64,800 35:53 -

As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares Amount % change
Liberatha Peter Kallat 15,67,500 15.68 -
Dinesh Nagpal 15,67,500 15.68 -
Mukesh Yadav 16,15,000 16.15 -

(e) Shares reserved for issue under employee stock option scheme is set out in Note 40.

(f) The Company for the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date has not: '
(i) Allotted any class of shares as fully paid pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash.
(i1) Allotted fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares except for 4.74 million shares of INR 10 each in bonus issue during the financial
year 2017-18 and 28.5 million shares of INR 2 each in bonus issue during the financial year 2021-22.
(iif) Bought back any class of shares.
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16 Other equity

Particulars REERGS ESOT Total
Surplus Reserve *

As at April 1, 2020 607.70 - 607.70
-Loss for the year (14.50) - (14.50)
-Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 2.37 - 2.37

As at March 31, 2021 595.57 - 595.57
-Issue of bonus shares (57.00) - (57.00)
-Profit for the year 162.47 - 162.47
-Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 3.50 - 3.50
-Share Based Payment (ESOP) (refer note-40) - 12.64 12.64

As at March 31, 2022 704.54 12.64 717.18

* The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees

under Employee stock option plan.
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17 Borrowings

a) Non current
(Secured, at amortised cost)
Term loans from bank
Vehicle loans

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

b) Current
Current maturities of non-current borrowings

10.22 11.64
: 1.21
10.22 12.85
253 734
2.53 7.34

Notes:

i) The term loan balance as on March 31, 2022, is payable in 79 (March 31, 2021: 91) instalments. The interest on such loan is payable

at MCLR - 1Y + 0.90% The loan has been taken against the security of Company's investment property (Buildings)

ii) The interest on vehicle loans is payable at the rate of 9.35% p.a

18 Lease liabilities

a) Non current
Lease liability

b) Current
Current maturities of lease liability

19 Trade payables

Current ,

1, total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

i total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

64.30 63.33

64.30 63.33
5.46 11.10
5.46 11.10
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

42227 211.81
290.80 97.10
713.07 308.91

* Tncludes related party balance of INR 0.39 million (March 31, 2021: INR 0.2 million) , refer note 41

a)

Details of Dues to Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises is based on the Management's knowledge of their status. Disclosure is
based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under ‘The Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act 42111 211.81
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - -
during each accounting vear.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the - -
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 116 -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED - ;
Act 2006
b) Trade Payables ageing:
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total

year

MSME 42197 0.24 - 422.21
Others 286.10 1,60 - 287.70
Disputed dues-MSML 002 004 0.06
Disputed dues-Others e 1.68 1.42 3.10
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As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
year

MSME 211.63 - - 211.63

Others 95.47 0.18 - - 95.65

Disputed dues-MSME 0.18 - ~ 0.18

Disputed dues-Others 145 - ~ 1.45
20 Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Security deposit- recetved 3.03 2.56

Accured salaries and benefit 7.31 20.69

Expense payable 3.60 3.28

13.94 26.53
21 Provisions As at As at

a) Non Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity
Leave encashment

b) Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity
Leave encashment

22 Other liabilities

Current
Advance against investment property
Advance from customers
Statutory dues
Liability towards Corporate Social Responsibility
Others

Marech 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

909 1135
7.87 701
16.96 18.36
144 1.86
1.35 156
2.79 3.42
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

- 89.15
0.25 0.06
3099 34.54
4.60 601
- 038
35.84 130.14
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23 Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of services 2,824 98 1,056.33
2,824.98 1,056.33
Notes:

a) Disaggregated revenue information
Type of services

Lounge fee 2,787.67 1,027.28
Other service fees 37.31 29.05
Total revenues from contracts with customers 2,824.98 1,056.33

The Company's revenue is generated primarily on account of transactions within India

24 Other income
Interest income on:

- fixed deposits with banks 0.11 878
- income tax refund 0.14 3.09
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.03
Write back of expected credit loss provision 0.08 -
Profit on disposal of Investment property 10.62 906
Rental income 1.18 .
Foreign exchange gain - 1.40
Finance income on amortisation of security deposits 2.47 2.02
Miscellaneous income 0.29 0.36
14.89 24.74

25 Cost of services
Lounge fee and other service related costs 2,372.66 875.41
2,372.66 875.41

26 Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus 141.09 119.18
Contribution to provident and other funds 8.82 513
ESOP 12,64 -
Staff welfare expenses 2.98 2.08
165.53 126.39

27 Finance costs

Interest paid
-on term loans 148 232
[nterest on MSME 1.17 -
Other borrowing costs
-Processing cost 0.15 036
-lease expenses 7.14 1.20
-bank charges 058 0.13
-finance expenses on amortisation of security deposits 3.79 3.44
14.31 7.45
28 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 10.09 12.62
Depreciation on investment property 092 0.40
Amorttization of intangible assets 0.79 098
Depreciation on right to use assets 949 1.54

Total 21.29 15.54
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For the year ended For the year ended
29 Other expenses March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rent 1.00 1.59
Repair & maintainance expenses 0.96 2.52
Electricity and water expenses 0.70 0.56
Travelling and conveyance 3.65 3.96
Commission expenses 0.71 -
Assets written off 0.03 1.41
Communication expenses 0.69 0.82
Information Technology Expenses 7.90 21.15
Insurance expenses 244 1.10
Rates and taxes 11.92 0.49
Legal and professional fees 13.84 10.83
Foreign exchange loss 0.03 -
Provision for expected credit loss - 0.06
Bad debts 1.25 .
Postage and courier expenses 029 039
Printing & stationery 0.30 0.18
Office maintainance expenses 3.82 .
Corporate social responsibility expenses 461 6,01
Business promotion 6.60 581
Miscellaneous expenses 0.63 141
Total 61.37 58.29
30 Auditor’s remuneration (exclusive of Tax):
Statutory Audit fee 1.00 025
Tax audit - 0.05
Other services - 0.53
Total LR 0.83
31 Tax expenses
Income tax recognized in statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax 4782 -
Tax expense telated to carlier years 023 .
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (5.81) 12.49
42.24 12.49
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1.18 0.80
Total income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive
income 1.18 0.80
Total income tax expense recognized 43.42 13.29

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate for respective
vear

Profit/(loss) before tax 20939 (2.01)
Statutory tax rate applicable (%) 25.17 25.17
Income tax expense calculated at applicable statutory tax rate 52.70 0.51)
Reconciliation Item
Tax saved on loss for the year - 0.51
Tax saved on brought forward losses (9.50) -
Change in tax rate - -
Expenses not allowed in tax computation 3.68 13.29
Other adjustments (3.46) -
Total income tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 43.42 13.29

32 Earning per Share

Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (In INR) 162.47 (14.50)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 5,22,50,000 5,22,50,000
EPS (No.) *

Add: Effect of potential dilutive shares (ESOPs)# 23,51,250 -
Weighted average number of shares considered for computation of 5,46,01,250 5,22,50,000

diluted EPS (No )**

Basic EPS/(LPS) (In INR) ER D (0.28)
Diluted EPS/(LPS) (In INR) 2.98 (0.28)

*  On September 10, 2021, the Company has sub-divided each fully paid up equity share of the nominal value of INR 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each into 5 (five) equity shares of INR 2/- (Rupee two Only) each fully paid up and the weighted
average number of shares have been adjusted for such division in line with requirements of IND AS 10

On September 25, 2021, the Company has issued the bonus shares in the ratio of 12:1 to the existing equity
sharcholders. Impact of the same has been considered in the calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS(LPS) and the weighted
average number of shares have been adjusted for such bonus issue in line with requirements of IND AS 10

The Company granted stock options to the eligible employees of Company during the year ended March 31, 2022 which
was considered in the above basic and diluted EPS
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33 Leases
The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to

use the underlying assets.

Operating lease commitments- Company as lessee
The Company has lease contracts for office premises. Lease of premises have lease term of 9 years.

a. Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities:

Recognition of leases 75.20
Accretion of interest 1.20
Payments (1.97)
As at March 31, 2021 74.43
Additions -

Deletions -

Accretion of interest 7.14
Payments (11.81)
As at March 31, 2022 69.76

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10.00% p.a.

b. The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss:

For the year ended For the year ended
March, 31 2022 March, 31 2021

Depreciation expense of right of use assets 9.49 1.54
Interest expense on lease liabilities 7.14 1.20
Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 16.63 2.74
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34 Financial risk management

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's operational activities are expose it to various financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company realizes that
these risks are inherent and integral aspect of business. The Company continues to focus on a system based approach to business risk management. The
Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company ensures that its financial risk activities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities.

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in the prices of a financial

instrument . The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices,
equity prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments

. Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long and short term borrowings obligations in the nature
of term loan, cash credit facilities and working capital loans

Particulars Fixed Rate Borrowing Variable Rate Borrowing Total Borrowing _
As at March 31, 2022 1.11 1164 12.75
As at March 31,2021 725 12.94 20.19

[nterest rate sensitivity analysis shows that an decrease / increase of fifty basis points in the floating interest rates would result in decrease / increase in the
Company’s profit / (loss) before tax by approximately INR 0.06 million (March 31, 2021: INR 0 06 million)

Impact on profit & loss

Sensitivity on variable rate borrowings March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Interest rate increase by 0.50% (0.06) 0.06
Interest rate decrease by 0.50% 0.06 (0.06)

ii. Foreign currency risk :

The Indian Rupee is the Company’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Company’s results are presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are
managed against Indian Rupee accordingly Foreign currency risk is the risk impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency,
which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
foreign currency transactions on account of global operations and transactions in foreign currency with its customers which is presently not significant in
comparison to the total operations of the Company

Credit risk:

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds, when
available, are made only with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. The Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is the carrying amounts
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(ii) Expected eredit loss for loans, security deposits and investments

Estimated gross Carrying amount

Internal Expected  Expected credit

Particulars Asset group credit rating carrying amount at probability of loss loss net oflmpalrl'n.ent
default provision
As at March 31, 2022
Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial - Considered good
recognition Security Deposits 63.36 - - 63 36
Loss allowance measured at life - time expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk has Loans
increased significantly and credit - Considered doubtful - -
impaired
As at March 31, 2021
Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk has Loans
not increased significantly since initial - Considered good
recognition Other financial assets 75.63 - - 75.63
Loss allowance measured at life - time expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk has Loans
increased significantly and credit
impaired. - Considered doubtful - -
(iii) Expected credit loss of trade receivables
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
X Upto 6 More than 6 Upto 6 More than 6
Particulars
months months months months
Gross carrying amount (A) 906.56 - 395.07 0.50
Expected credit loss (B) - - - (0.08)
Net carrying amount (A-B) 906.56 - 395.07 0.42

C Liquidity risk:
The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company .

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contracted undiscounted payments (excluding transaction cost
on borrowings).

Particulars Less than one year Above 1 year but Above S years Total
less than S years

I As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings 2.53 10.22 - 12.75
Other financial liabilities 1394 - - 13.94
Trade payables 713.07 - - 713.07
Leases 12.10 56.68 28.63 97.41
Total 741.64 66.90 28.63 837.17

II As at March 31, 2021

Borrowings 734 761 524 20.19
Other financial liabilities 26.53 - - 26.53
Trade payables 308.92 - - 308.92
Leases 1181 53.17 4424 109.22
Total 354.60 60.78 49.48 464.86

The table below summarises the undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting year

As at As at
Floating Rate March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fund based facility (working capital loan and cash credit facility)* 100 100
Total 100 100

*Also refer Note 41
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35 Financial Instruments - Disclosure
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value,
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard

A Financial Instruments by category

- As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
s Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL
Financial assets
At amortised cost
Investments 0.05 - 0.05 -
Trade receivables 906.56 - 395.49
Cash and cash equivalents 10.87 - 99 92
Other bank balances 134.72 - -
Others financial asset
- Non current 27.19 - 24,72 -
- Current 8274 - 5091
Total financial assets 1,162.13 - 571.09 &
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Borrowings
- Non current 1022 12.85
- Current 253 7.34
Trade payables
- Non current - -
- Current 713.07 308.92 -
Other financial liabilities
- Current 13.94 - 26.53 .
Lease liabilities -
- Non current 64,30 63.33
- Current 5.46 11,10 .
Total financial liabilities 809.52 - 430.07 -
Accounting classification and fair values
Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31,2022  March 31,2021  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets

- At amortised cost
Investments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Others financial asset

- Non current

- Current

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

- At amortised cost
Borrowings

- Non current

- Current

Trade payables

- Non current

- Current

Other financial liabilities
- Current

Lease liabilities

- Non current

- Current

Total financial liabilities

0.05
906.56
10.87
134.72

2719

82.74
1,162.13

1022
2.53

713.07
13.94
64.30

5.46
809.52

0.05
395.49
99.92

2472
5091
571.09

12.85
734

30892
26.53
6333

1o
430.07

0.05
906.56
10.87
134.72

27.19
82.74
1,162.13

10.22
2.53

0.05
395.49
99.92

24.72
50.91
571.09

12.85
734

30892

2653

63.33

1110
430.07
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C Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, unbilled revenue, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents,
other financial assets and other financial liabilities (which are not disclosed below) are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments = - 0.05 0.05
Trade receivables * - - 906.56 906.56
Other bank balances 13472 134.72
Loans: -
- Non current - - 27.19 2719
- Current - - 82.74 82.74

Others financial asset
- Non current - - - -
- Current * - - i
Total financial assets - - 1,151.26 1,151.26

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

- Non current - - 10.22 10.22
- Current * - 2.53 2.53
Trade payables * - -

- Non current = “

- Current * 713.07 713.07
Other financial liabilities

- Current * - - 13.94 13.94
Lease liabilities - -

- Non current 6430 64.30
- Current * 546 5.46

Total financial liabilities - - 809.52 809.52
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36

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
At amortised cost
Investments - 0.05 0.05
Trade receivables * - 395.49 39549
Other bank balances -
Others financial asset -
- Non current - - 2472 24.72
- Current 5091 50.91
Total financial assets - - 471.17 471.17
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Borrowings
- Non current - - 12.85 12.85
- Current * - - 7.34 7.34
Trade payables *
- Non current - ] - -
- Current * - - 308.92 308 92
Other financial liabilities
- Current * - - 26.53 26.53
Lease liabilities
- Non current - - 63.33 63.33
- Current * - - 11.10 11.10
Total financial liabilities - - 430.07 430.07

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

* The carrying amounts are considered to approximate their fair values largely due to short term maturities of these instruments

Note:
1 There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 and level 3 in any of the years reported above.
2 The level 1 financial instruments are measured using quotes in active market.

Capital Management

The Company’s objectives while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and optimise returns for its shareholders. For the
purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders and net debt
includes interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents including other bank balances. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and
strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its

business

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The
Company’s funding requirements are met through internal accruals, short-term and long-term borrowings, No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021

The net gearing ratio at end of the reporting years was as follows.

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Debt (i) 12.75 20.19
Cash & bank balances including other bank balances 145.59 9992
Net Debt (132.84) (7973)
Total Equity 821.68 643.07
Net gearing ratio (0.16) (0.12)

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings
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As at As at
Contingent Liabilties, capital and other commitinents : March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Estmated amount of contracls remaining (o be - -
executed on capilal account and not provided for (net
ol advances)
Other Commitments - -
Contingent Liabilities . -
As at As at
Ratios to disclosed as per requirement of Schedule [1I to the Companies Act, 2013 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a) Current Ratio 1.65 1.27
% Change as compared o previous year 3007% -2573%

Explanation for change in the ratio by mere than 25% as compared to the previous year:
The ratio has increased from 1.27 as at March 31 2021 to | 65 as al March 31 2022 due (o increase in business operations resulling in higher trade receivables and
cash and bank balance during the year

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 0.02 003
% Change as compared to previous year -50.59% -33 44%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

Due (o profit from operations the reserves and surplus increased during Lhe year and the value of outstanding debl also dechined due to repayment of debts
resulting in a decrease in Debt-Equity ratio from 0.03 for the year ended March 31, 2021 to 0 02 for the year ended March 31, 2022

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 30.08 (0.45)
% Change as compared o previous year 6724.90% -99 05%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

Higher profit from operations for the year ended March 31, 2022 resulted i an improvement in he debt service coverage ratio compared to the preyvious year

(d) Return on Equity Ratio 2020% -1 89%
% Change as compared to presious year 1171 20% -10297%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to (he previous year:

Higher profit from operations for the year ended March 31, 2022 resulied in an improvement n the retum-to-equity ratio compared (o the previous vear

{e) Trade Receivables turnover ratio 434 195
% Change as compared (o previous year 121 98% -69.61%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

For the year ended March 31, 2022, trade receivables turmoyer ratio improved due to improsement in trade receivables days

() Trade payables turnover ratio L6 2.01
% Change as compared to previous year -42.30% -68 32%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

For the vear ended March 31. 2022, (rade payables turnover ratio decreased due to reduction in pavable days as a resull of Lhe increase in MSME vendors

(g) Net capital tmrmover ratio 558 798
% Change as compared to preyvious year =30 02% 527%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

As at March 31, 2022, net capital tumover ration decreased due to incease in revenue [rom operations which lead (o corresponding mcrease 1n current assets

(h) Net prolfit ratio 575% -137%
% Change as compared to previous year 519 00% =115 90%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

For the year ended March 31, 2022, improvement in ratio is mainly attributable to increase in revenue of the Company which improved on account of recovery
from COVID 19 pandemic

(i) Return on Capital employed 23.98% 074%
% Change as compared to previous year 3150 43% -10297%
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the previous year:

For the year ended March 31, 2022, improvement in ratio is mainly attributable (o increase in res enue of the Company which improved on account ol recovery
from COVID 19 pandemic

Disclosure for items included in numerator and denominator';

Particulars Numerator Denominator

(a) Current Ratio, Current Assets Currenl liabilities

(b) Debl-Equity Ratio, Borrowings Share Capital and Reserves

{(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio. Nel profil afler (ax before interest and depreciaiion Borrowings principal and interes! and lease
payments for the year

(d) Retumn on Equity Ratio, Net profil afler tax Shareholder's equity

(e) mventory lumoyer ralio. N/A N/A

(e) Trade Receivables (umover ratio, Reyenue Average trade recen ables

(f) Trade pavables tumnoser ratio, Cosl of services Average trade payables

(g) Net capital umover ralio, Revenue Working Capital 1 ¢ Currenl assels minus
current liabilives

(h) Nel profit ratio, Nel profil after lax Revenue

(1) Relum on Capital employed., Earmings before lax and interesl Capital employed 1 ¢. Shareholders equity

plus non current liabilities

(1) Relurn on investment NA (Since Lhere are no iny ) NA (Since there are no inyestments)
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39 Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 19 on Employee Benefits :

1. Defined contribution plans
The Company makes confributions fowards a provident fund under a defined contribution retirement benefil plan for qualifying employees The provident fund is
administered by Employee Provident Fund Organisation Under this scheme, the Company is required to contribule a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund
the benefits

Both the employees and the Company make pre-determined contributions to the provident fund Amount recognized as expense amounts (o INR 8 &0 million for
the year ended March 31. 2022 (for the year ended March 31, 2021: INR 5 13 million) under contributions to provident and other funds

1. Gratuity
The Company have an obligation lowards gratuily, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees as per the Payment ol Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan provides
for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days
salary payable for each completed year of service Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service The gratuily benefits are unfunded

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made al the end of each financial year The present value of
the defined benefit obligalion is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting year on

govemment bonds that hay e terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation

The Company regularly these pli

with the proj

d long-term plans and prevalent industry standards

IIL. Leave plan and compensated absences

The Company has a leaye encashment scheme with defined benefits for its employees, The Company makes proviston for such liability in the books of accounts on
the basis of year end actuarial valuation No fund has been created for this scheme

IV. For summarizing the components of net benefil expense recognized in the statement of profil and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in (he balance

sheet for he respective plans, the delails are as under

a. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Gratuity
Description As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 13.21 13.68
Interest cost 038 093
Total service cost 154 177
Benefits paid (042) -
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligalion (4 68) @I1n
Closing defined benefit obligation 10.53 13.21
Leave Encashment
Description LT st
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening defined benelit obligation 8.57 9.65
Interest cost 057 0.66
Total service cost 3.06 202
Benefits paid (L43) (0.25)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation (155) (351)
Closing defined benefit obligation 9.22 8.57
b. Changes in fair value of plan assets:
Gratuity
Description Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening fair value of plan assets
Expected retum

Contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gains)/losses

Closing fair value of plan assets

Leave Encashment
Description

Opening Fair value of plan assets
Expecled retum

Contribulions

Benefits paid

Acluarial (gains)/losses

Closing fair value of plan assets

¢. Net employee benefit exp [ ized in of profit and loss
Gratuity
For the year For the year
Description ended ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Total service cosl 154 177
Interest cost 088 093
Nel Actuarial (Gan)/ Loss - .
Total Expense 242 2.70
Net employee benelfit exp T d in Other Comprehensive income
Gratuity
Description
Net Acluarial (Gain)/ Loss (4 68) @317
Net employee benefit exp recognized in of profit and loss
Leave Encashmen(
Description
Total service cost 306 202
Inleresi cost 057 U 66
Nel Actuaral (Gain)/ Loss (1 55) (351)
2.08 (0.83)

Total Expense
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d. Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Gratuity
Description et EAg
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1053 1321
Fair value of plan assets as al the end of Lhe year » -
Net Asset/ (liability) recognized in Balance sheet 1053 1321
Leave Encashment
Description
Present value of obligation as al the end of the year 922 857
Fair value of plan assels as at the end of the year - -
Net Asset/ (liability) recognized in Balance sheet 922 857
e. The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for (he Company’s plans are shown below:
Gratuity
Description
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate (%) 670pa 669pa
Expected salary increase (%) 2.00% p.a. 200%pa
Average remaining working lives of employees 22.39 years 22 43 years
Average pasl service (years) 2 50 years 265 years
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age (year) 58 years 58 years
Mortalily rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM 100% of TALM
(2012 - 14) (2012-14)
Leave Encashment
Description As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate (%) 670pa 669pa
Expected salary increase (%) 200pa 200pa
Average remaining working lives of employees 2239 years 22 43 years
Average past service (years) 2.50 years 2 65 vears
Demographic Assumptions
Relirement Age (year) 58 years 58 years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of TALM 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)
The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in the emplovment market The above information is certified by Actuary
Sensitivity analysis of the delined benefit obligation:
Gratuity
o As at As at
Description Marech 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligalion at the end of the year 1053 1321
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 022) (0.25)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 023 026
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1053 13.2)
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 024 027
Impact due to decrease of 0 50% (0.23) 027)
Leave Encashment
Description
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 922 8.57
Impacl due to increase of 0.50% (0.20) (0.20)
Impact due Lo decrease of 0.50% 021 020
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligalion at the end of the year 922 857
Impacl due to increase of 0 50% 022 0.2¢

Impacl due to decrease of 0 50% ©021) oz
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Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligations

Gratuity
. Asat As at
il
Description March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Oto | Year 144 186
| 1o 2 Year 11t 143
2103 Year 115 128
3to4 Year 090 357
4to5 Year 079 066
510 6 Year 080 057
6 Year onwards 434 382
Leave Encashment
L As at Asg at
i
Description March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Oto ] Year 135 156
1102 Year 124 094
2103 Year 075 099
3io04 Year 066 171
4to5 Year 057 045
5106 Year 078 039
6 Year onwards 387 252
Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting year.
Gratuity
s As at As at
D
eseription March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Service Cost 1 184
Net Interest Cost 071 0388
Expecled Expense for the next annual reporting year 242 272
Leave Encashment
Service Cost 209 174
Net Interest Cost 062 057
27 231

Expected contribution for the next annual reporting year

40 Share - based payments
Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 namely “ESOP 20217 was adopted by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated September 28, 2021 and by the
shareholders vide its resolution dated September 29. 2021 Under the ESOP 2021, the Company granted stock options to the eligible employees of Company
which will vest over a period of 3 years from date of Grant. The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using the Black- Scholes option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted Oplions have been granted with vesting period of 1 to 3
years and are exercisable for a period of 5 years once vested There are no cash settlement altematives The Company does not have a past practice of cash

settlement for these share options

As at As at
E March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Expense arising from equily-settled share-based pay tr i 1264 NA
Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number of, and movements in, share options during the year:
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Numbers Numbers
Outslanding at the beginning of the vear - N/A
Granted duning the year 23,51,250 N/A
Exercised during the year - N/A
Expired/ lapsed during the vear - N/A
Outstanding al the end of the year 23 51,250 N/A
Exercisable at the end of the year - N/A
The ESOP value al Lhe date of grant of these options is Rs. 17 53 per share
The following lable list the inputs to the valuation model used for the plan:
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Dividend yield (%) 0% N/A
Volatility (%) 18 37% -2230% N/A
Risk-free interest rate (%) 417%-511% N/A
Average expected life of options (years) I 5years -3 5 years N/A
Dale of grant 29th September 2021 N/A
Model used Black Scholes Model N/A
Rs 96 46 per share N/A

Exercise price (Rupees per share)
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41 Related Party Transactions in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -24
| Subsidiary company Dreamfolks Hospitality Private Limited

2 Individual having direct or indirect significant
influence over the reporting entity Mukesh Yadav
Dinesh Nagpal
Liberatha Peter Kallat (Managing Director)
Balaji Srinivasan (Director since Seplember 02, 2021)

3 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Giya Diwaan (Chief Financial Officer since September 24, 2021)
Balaji Srinivasan (KMP since September 02, 2021)
Liberatha Peler Kallat (Managing Director)
Rangoli Agarwal (Company Secretary since October 19, 2021)

4 Direclors Mukesh Yaday
Dinesh Nagpal
Sharadchandra Damodar Abhayankar, Independent director (from November 30, 2021
Mario Anthony Nazareth, Independent director (from November 30, 2021)
Aditi Balbir, Independent director (from November 30, 2021)

Sudhir Jain, [ndependent director (from November 30, 2021)

5 Enterprises over which individual and their relatives exercise significant infl with whom ions have taken place during the year

Whistling Heights Resorts Private Limited
Lmd Estate Private Limiled (formerly known as Dreamfolks Eslate Private Limiled)
Urban Land Managemenl Private Limited*
Ankur Associates*
DIm Technologies Private Limited {formerly known as Dreamfolks Technologies
Private Limited (Since 16 09 2019)}
Pockket Payment Technologies Private Limited (Since 12 04 2021)
* No transactions with these enlities during the year

a. Transactions with related parties

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended

Manrch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(A) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Remuneration
Mukesh Yaday 22 84 2346
Dinesh Nagpal 22 84 2346
Liberatha Peter Kallat 34.26 23 46
Balaji Srinivasan 418 -
Giya Diwaan 318 -
Rangoli Agganwal 065 -
Reimbursements
Mukesh Yadav 006 1.85
Dinesh Nagpal 000 192
Liberatha Peter Kallat 015 192
Balaji Srinivasan 065 -
Giya Diwaan 045
Rangoli Aggarwal 014
Advance Taken
Mukesh Yaday 4.98 750
Dinesh Nagpal 13.02 -
Liberatha Peter Kallat 902 -
Advance recovered
Mukesh Yadav (4 98) (17 50)
Dinesh Nagpal {13.02) (10.00)
Liberatha Peter Kallat (902) (10.00)
1IPO Expenses on behalf of selling shareholders
Mukesh Yaday 1674
Dinesh Nagpal 1624
Liberatha Peter Kallat 812

Rent Payment
Dinesh Nagpal 033
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For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(B) Enterprises over which individual and their velatives exercise significant influence

Rent paid
Ankur Associates - 062

Commission paid
Lmd Estate Private Limiled (formerly known as Dreamfolks Eslate Privale
Limited) 071

Revenue -membership fees
Pockket Payment Technologies Private Limited 355

Software support services (Expense)
DIm Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks
Technologies Private Limited) . 18.00

Reimbursement for expenses paid
Dim Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks
Technologies Private Limited) 046 042

Intangible assets purchase
DIm Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks
Technologies Private Limited) 43 81

Advance given
Whislling Heights Resorts Private Limited 45 50

Advances recavered
Lmd Estate Private Limited (formerly known as Dreamf(olks Estate Private
Limited)

v ©27)
Whistling Heights Resorts Private Limited (45 50) .

Notes:

| The remunaration to KMP for March 31, 2022 has been disclosed afier considering restatement

2 Giya Diwaan and Balaji Srinivasan have been granted 13,06.250 and 10.45.000 options respectively during the year ended March 31. 2022 (refer note 40)
3 Number of Honus shares issued to Promolers on Seglember 25, 2021

Name No. of shares

Mukesh Yadav 96.90.000
Dinesh Nagpal 94,05.000
Liberatha Peter Kallat 94,05.000)

4 The sitting fees paid to non-executive directors is Rs. 070 Million and Rs Nil as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively

b. Balances of related parties as at:

As at As at
{A) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salary recoverable/(payable)
Balaji Srinivasan (0 43) -
Dinesh Nagpal - (6.82)
Liberatha Peter Kallat (143) (637)
Mukesh Yadas - (228)
Giya Diwaan (031) -
Rangoli Aggarwal ©16) -

Reimbursement payables

Balaji Srinivasan ©15) -

Giya Diwan (0.23)

Rangoli Aggarwal (0.03)

Expenses payables

Mukesh Yaday (0.05)

Dinesh Nagpal 034 .
Liberatha Peler Kallat - © 4
Mukesh Yaday - (0.06)

Other financial assets*

Mukesh Yaday 1674
Dinesh Nagpal 16 24 -
Liberatha Peter Kallat 812 -

* Refer note 53

(B) Enterprises over which individual and their velatives exercise significant influence
Security deposit given
Urban land management private limited 6250 6250

Capital advance
Urban land management private limited 10 00 10 00
Expenses payable

Ankur Associates . (0 07)

DIm Technologies Privale Limited (formerly known as Dreamfolks

Technologies Privale Limited) . (0 64)

Note:

The Company has oulstanding undrawn sanction limit of fund based working capital of Rs 10 million as at March 31 2022 (Rs 10 million as at March 31, 2021)
bearing inlerest rate 4, repo rale + 4 3% The aboye sanclion limil is taken based on personal guarantee of Promolers ol the Company
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42 Segment information
An operaling segment is a component of the Company thal engages n business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions wath any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial informalion 1s available All operaling
segments' operaling results are reviewed regularly by Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated lo the segments and assess (heir
performance The Company’s business activity falls within a single segment, which is providing airport services (o help ils Clients to achieve their business goals,
in lerms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting

In view of the management, there is only one reportable segment as envisaged by Indian Accounling Standard 108, 'Operating Segments' as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued Lhereunder Accordingly. no disclosure for segmeni reporting has been made in the
financial statements

43 Sub-division of equity shares
The Board ol Direclors of the Company in its meeting held on September 2, 2021 have approved sub-division of exisiing authorised share capital of the Company
from Rs 50.00 million consisting of 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each to 25,000,000 equily shares of face value of INR 2 each and sub-
division of existing issued, subscribed and paid-up equily share capital of the Company from Rs 47 50 million consisting of 4,750.000 equily shares of face value
ol INR 10 each to 23,750,000 equily shares of face value of Rs 2 each This has been approved by the shareholders in their extra-ordinary general meeting held on
September 10, 2021

44 Issue of bonus shares
The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeling held on September 24, 2021 have approyed issuance of bonus shares in (he ratio of 11 2 to existing equily
shareholders by capitalizing a sum of Rs 57 00 mullion oul of the reserves of the Company. pursuant to which issued, subscribed and paid-up equily share capital
of the Company stands increased from Rs. 47 50 million consisting of 23,750,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each to Rs 104 50 million consisting of
52,250,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each. This has been approved by the shareholders m their extra-ordinary general meeling held on Seplember 25,

2021

45 Change in status and name of the Company
During the year ending 31 March 2022. (he siatus of the Company has changed from pnvate to public company

46 In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Board of Directors of the Company had constiluled a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Commiltee During the year, the Commiltee has approved the budget outlay of Rs 4 61 million (March 31, 2021: Rs 601 million) for
Corporate Social Responsibiliy (CSR) The Company has made payments in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the 461 601
Company during the year
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during 4.61 6.01
the vear
c) Amount spent during the year
1) Conslruction/acquisition of any asset - -
ii} On purposes other than (i) above - -
Health and Education 601 385
Tolal CSR spend in aclual 6.01 3.85
d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
1) Contribution to Public Trust
ity Contribution to Charilable Trust -
1ii) Unspent amount in relation to
- Ongoing project (Health and Education) 461 s
- Other than ongoing project - 601
4.61 6.01
Details of ongoing and other than ongoing project
Amount spenl . .
Opening Balance with Company as on March 31, Amount reql.nred to during lhepyear Deposited in Separate CSR Unspenl e L
2021 be spent during the From Company’s A Crémpan) In Separate
year SR Unspent A/c
bank A/c
601 4.61 601 461 461

47 The outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and i India ts causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic actvity The Company's
operations were impacled due to restriction on travel and hotel accommodation during the nationwide lockdown As a resull of lockdown. the yolumes for the year
ended March 31. 2021 have been sigmificantly impacted. While we did see sigmificant recovery for the year ended March 31, 2022 Further. the Company has
considered the possible effects that may resull from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of property. plant and equipment, recenvables
and other assets In developing the assumptions relaling Lo the possible future uncertainties in the global economic condition because of the pandemic, the
Company. as a the date of the approval of thes standalone financial information has used intemnal and exteral sources on the expecied fulure performance of the
Company. Based on current indicators of future conditions, the Company expecls the carrying amount of these will be recovered and sufficient liquidity 1s
available lo (und the business operations We conslanily monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions which potentially may 1mpact our
assessmenl and {inancial posilion

48 In (he opinion of the management there 1s no reduction in value of any assets. unless otherwise stated. in lerms of requirement of Indian Accounting Standard — 36

Impairment of Assets”

49 There are no present obligations requiring provisions in accordance with the guwiding principles as enunciated i Indian Accounting Standard - 37 Provisions,
C Liabil & Cc sent Assels'
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50 Statutery Information :
A) The Company do not have any Benan property, where any proceeding has been intiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

B) The Company do nol have any transactions with struck off companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act. 1956
€) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which 1s vel to be reistered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory vear
D) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency duning the financial year

E) The Company has nol granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promolers, directors, KMPs and the relaled parties (as defined under Companies
Act, 2013), either severally or joinlly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specify ing any terms or period of repayment

F) The Company haye nol advanced or loaned or invested (unds to any other person or entity. including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding

that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest n other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ulimate Beneficiaries): or

(b) provide any guaraniee, securily or the like (o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

G) The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or othenwise) Lhat the Company shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulumate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies,

H) The Company do not hase any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the lax assessments under (he Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant proyisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961

1) The Company have not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters 1ssued by the Reserve Bank of India

51 New amendments issued but not effective  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide nolification dated March 23, 2022 noufied Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules. 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective April 01, 2022 These amendments are not expected to have a
malenial impact on the company In the current or future reporting years and on foreseeable (uture transaclions

S2 R i i to to Schedule 111 : The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act. 2013 on
March 24, 2021 (o increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures Lo users of financial statemenls These amendments are e(Tective from April 01,
2021

Consequent to aboye. the company has changed the classification/presentation of (i) current maturities of long-term borrowings (i1} security deposits, in the current
year

The current maturities of long-lecm borrowings (including inlerest accrued) has now been included in the “Current borrowings” line item Previously, current
maturities of long-term borrowings and interest accrued were included in “olher financial liabilities line ilem

Further, security deposits (which meel the defimition of a financial asset as per Ind AS 32) have been included in “other financial assets™ line 1tem. Previously. these
deposits were included in ‘loans” line item

The company has reclassified comparative amounls to confirm with current year presentation as per the requirements of Ind AS 1 The impact of such
classificalions 1s summarised below

March 31, 2021

Balance sheet (extract) (as previously  Increase/ (Decrease) March 31, 2021

reported) (vestated)
Other financial liabilities (current) 44 97 (15 44) 26 53
Other financial liabilities (non-current) 6333 (63 33) .
Lease liabilities (current) - 1o It 1o
Lease liabililtes (non-current) 63133 6333
Current borrowings 734 734
Loans (non-current) 2472 (24 72)
Loans (current) 28,86 (28.86) E
Other financial assets (current) 2205 28.86 5091
2472 2472

Other financial assels (non-current) N

5.

&«

Initial Public Offering (IPO)

The Board of Directors (Board) of the Company in their board meeting dated June 07, 2021 have approsed an Initial Public Offering (IPO) As part of its
proposed IPO. the Company has filed Drall Red Herring Prospectus on January 21. 2022 and plans to file Red Hearing Prospecius (RHP) wilh the Securities
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in the coming peniod  Existing shareholders propose (o sell the slake in the Company Prepayments in relation to the proposed
PO included under "Other financial assels" include expenses of TNR 41 10 million incurred by the Coirsany lowards 1PO of the equily shares held by
shareholders These expenses are recoverable from selling shareholders in proportionale to shares (hat will be offered to the public in the proposed PO

As per our report of even date attached
For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dreamfolks Services Limited
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Lberathn Peter Kallat Mukesh
Managing Direclor Direclor

Sunil Wahal
Partner

Membership No 087294 DIN 06849062 DIN 01105819
Place New Delhi Place New Delhi Place New Dellu
Date June 06, 2022 Date June 06, 2022 Date June 06, 2022
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MNo F401518 MNo  Ad4096
Place New Delht Place New Delhi
Dale June 06. 2022 Date June 06. 2022




DreamFelks

Your Atrport ‘Experience Amplified !

TO THE MEMBERS OF,

DREAMFOLKS SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS® REPORT

DreamFolks Services Limited

#501, Tower-2, Fifth Floor, Worldmark
Sector-65, Gurugram -122018
Haryana, India | 0124-4037306

www.dreamfolks.in | info@dreamfolks.in
CIN: U51909DL2008PLC177181

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth Annual report on the business and operations

of Dreamfolks Services Limited (the “Company”) together with the Audited Financial Statements for

the financial year ended March 31, 2022. As required under Section 92(3), the copy of the annual return

can be accessed form the website of the Company, i.e., https://www.dreamfolks.in.

(1) RESULT OF OUR OPERATIONS

(A) FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY
The highlights of the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year (“FY”)

2021-2022 are as under :-

(Amount in INR millions)
For the year For the year
Particulars -
ended March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
Standalone | Consolidated | Standalone Consolidated
Income
Revenue from operations 2824 .98 282498 1056.33 1056.33
Other income 14.89 14.91 24.74 24.76
Total income 2839.87 2839.89 1081.07 1081.09
Total expenses 2635.16 2635.13 1083.08 1083.10
Profit / (loss) before tax 204.71 204.76 (2.01) (2.01)
Tax Expense
Current tax 47.82 47.82 - -
Tax expense related to earlier 0.23 0.23 - -
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (5.81) (5.81) 12.49 12.49
Profit / (loss) after tax for 162.47 162.47 (14.50) (14.50)
Balance in the Profit/(Loss) 717.18 595.57 717.15 595.49
Account in the Balance Sheet
Earnings / (Loss) per equity share (INR)
Basic 3.11 3.11 (0.28) (0.28)
Diluted 2.98 298 (0.28) (0.28)
Face value per share 2 2 10 10

Regd. Office : 22, DDA Flats, Shivalik Road, Panchsheel Park, New Delhi- 110017
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(B) REVIEW OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

DreamFolks is a dominant player and India's largest airport service aggregator platform facilitating an
enhanced airport experience to passengers leveraging a technology driven platform. We facilitate
customers access to services like Lounges, Food & Beverage, Spa, Meet & Assist, Airport Transfer,
Transit Hotels /Nap Room Access, and Baggage Transfer.

Over the years, we have transformed from being an airport lounge access aggregator to an end-to-end
technology solutions provider for designing and delivering services that enhance the airport experience.
We have crafted our service proposition to provide Clients the option of offering a wide-ranging bouquet

of Services to the Consumers.

Our asset-light business model integrates global card networks operating in India, credit card and debit
card issuers and other corporate clients, in India, including airline companies with various airport lounge
operators and other airport related service providers on a unified technology platform.

The Key highlights pertaining to the business performance of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March, 2022 and period subsequent there to have been given hereunder:

* During the period under review, the Company has recorded Total Revenue of INR 2824.98 million
achieving a 167.43% increase as compared to the previous financial year under review on standalone

basis.

* Further, the Company has earned Net Profit amounting to INR 162.47 million during the financial year

under review on standalone basis.
(C) KEY DEVELOPMENTS DURING THE YEAR 2021-22
(I) Sub-division of equity shares
The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 2, 2021 have approved
sub-division of existing authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 50.00 million

consisting of 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each to 25,000,000 equity shares
of face value of INR 2 each and sub-division of existing issued, subscribed and paid-up equity
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share capital of the Company from Rs. 47.50 million consisting of 4,750,000 equity shares of
face value of INR 10 each to 23,750,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2 each. This has been
approved by the shareholders in their extra-ordinary general meeting held on September 10,
2021.

Increase in the Authorised share capital of the Company

The members at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on September 14, 2021,
approved increase in the authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 5,00,00,000 divided
into 2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each to Rs. 15,00,00,000 divided into 7,50,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 2 each.

(III) Issue of bonus shares

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 24, 2021, have
approved issuance of bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1.2 to existing equity shareholders by
capitalizing a sum of Rs. 57.00 million out of the reserves of the Company, pursuant to which
issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company stands increased from Rs.
47.50 million consisting of 23,750,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each to Rs. 104.50
million consisting of 52,250,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each. This has been

approved by the shareholders in their extra-ordinary general meeting held on September 25,
2021.

(IV) Approval of ESOP’s Plan

Your Company has approved ESOP’S Plan on 29® September, 2021 and therefore ESOP were
granted to identified Employees of the Company. The details of ESOP granted have been given
in para 34 of the Board Report.

(V) Conversion of the Company from Private Limited to a Public Limited Company and

consequent change of name of the Company:

Your Company was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from November 23,

2021 upon issue of fresh certificate of incorporation from Registrar of Companies, Delhi and
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accordingly its name has been changed to “Dreamfolks Services Limited" (formerly
Dreamfolks Services Private Limited), leading to a consequent amendment to the

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

Filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with Securities and Exchange Boardof
India (SEBI)

Your Company on January 22, 2022, filed DRHP (dated January 21, 2022) with SEBI for its
initial public offering (IPO) comprising of an offer for sale of up to 21,814,200 equity shares.
Post TPO, equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE Limited and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). Your Company has received in-principle
approval for the proposed listing of its shares from the National StockExchange of India Ltd
(NSE) on 22 February, 2022 and from the BSE Ltd on 22 February, 2022 and has got clearance
from SEBI on the DRHP on 9 May, 2022.

Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) —-IFRS Converged Standards

Your Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) with effect from April 1%
2020 and the Annual Accounts of 2020-21 and 2021-22, has been drawn in terms of the
provisions of the INDAS.

(D) STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Company are drawn up, both on standalone and consolidated

basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, in accordance with the requirements of the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind-AS) notified under Section 133 of the Act,

read with relevant Rules and other accounting principles. The Consolidated Financial Statement has

been prepared based on the financial statements received from subsidiaries, as approved by their

respective Board of Directors.

After the end of the financial year under review, the Securities Exchange Board of India has approved
the DRHP filed by the Company and the Company is in the process of raising funds though Initial Public

i
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Offer. In the view of the management of the Company, there is no other material change which has taken
place after the end of the financial year under review till the date of this report of Board of Directors.

3. APPROPRIATION AND RESERVES

Dividend

With a view to reinvest the profits of the busineés, the Board of Directors of your Company (the “Board™)
has not recommended any dividend on equity shares of the Company for year ended March 31, 2022.

Reserves
Your directors have not proposed to transfer any amount to reserves for the financial year 2021-22.

4. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared as per the applicable accounting

standard consolidating the Company’s accounts with its subsidiaries will form part of the annual report.

5. REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review.

6. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the financial year under review, your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit falling
within the purview of the provisions of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the requirement for furnishing
of details of deposits which are not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.
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7. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3%(L) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect
the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
and date of this report.

8. DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business
including adherence to the Company’s Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of Frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely

preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company has established internal control systems which is adequately commensurate with its size,
scale and nature of operations so as to ensure smoothness of operations and compliance with applicable
legislation. During the year under review, such controls were tested by the Statutory Auditors of the
Company and no material weaknesses in the design or operations were observed and reported by the

Statutory Auditors.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system and suggests improvements to strengthen the same.

9. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All contracts or arrangements entered into -by your Company with its related parties during the

financial year were in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. All such contracts
or arrangements were approved by the Audit Committee and were in the ordinary course of business,

on an arm’s length basis.

Your Directors draw attention of the Sharcholders to note no. 40 of the consolidated financial

statements and note no. 41 of standalone financial statements whichsets out related party disclosures.
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10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as on March 31, 2022 are set
out in the financial statements forming part of this report.

11. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(AXII OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting
rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with applicable rules is furnished.

12. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(D) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any sweat shares and hence no
information as per the provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable
rules is furnished.

13. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year under review.

14. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the financial year 2021-2022, from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 the Board of Director of the
company met sixteen (16) times on 19.04.2021, 07.06.2021, 26.06.2021, 16.08.2021, 02.09.2021,
11.09.2021, 24.09.2021, 25.09.2021, 27.09.2021, 28.09.2021, 19.10.2021, 19.11.2021, 24.11.2021,
30.11.2021, 10.01.2022, 21.01.2022 and the intervening gap between the meetings was in compliance
of the provisions of section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of attendance are given below:

No. of Board Meetings Held which| No. of Board Meetings
Director’s Name

Director was entitled to attend Attended by the Director
Mukesh Yadav 16 16
Dinesh Nagpal 16 16
Liberatha Peter Kallat 16 16
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Balaji Srinivasan 11 11
Aditi Balbir 2 2
Sharadchandra Damodar Abhyankar 2 ¥
Sudhir Jain 2 2
Mario Anthony Nazareth 2 2

15. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the CompaniesAct,
2013, (“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*‘SEBI LODR Regulations’) and other
applicable laws inter alia with respect to appointment of women director,non-executive director(s) and

independent director(s).

During the year under review, the following changes have taken place in the composition of the Board
of Directors of the Company.

a) Appointment of Mr. Balaji Srinivasan as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f 2"
September, 2021.

b) Regularization of Mr. Balaji Srinivasan and promoted as Executive Director of the Company w.e.f.
19% October, 2021.

¢) Appointment of Mr. Sharadchandra Damodar Abhyankar as an Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 30" November, 2021.

d) Appointment of Mr. Sudhir Jain as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 30® November,
2021

e) Appointment of Mr. Mario Anthony Nazareth as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.
30" November, 2021.

f) Appointment of Ms. Aditi Balbir as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 30" November,
2021.

g) Change in Designation of Ms. Liberatha Peter Kallat as Chairperson and Managing Director of the
Company w.e.f. 30 November, 2021.

h) Change in designation of Mr. Mukesh Yadav as Non- Executive Director w.e.f. 22 November 2021.
i) Change in designation of Mr. Dinesh Nagpal as Non- Executive Director w.e.f. 22 November 2021.
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Pursuant to the approval of the Board at its meeting held on 2™ September 2021, appointed Mr. Balaji
Srinivasan as an Additional Director. In accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and of the Articles of Association of the Company, an Additional Director holds
office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board has taken into consideration the attributes and qualifications of the Independent Directors
provided in Section 149 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, while appointing them as Directors of the Company.

The Independent Directors of Your Company have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Section 149 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and have included their names in thedatabank of Independent
Directors, as required under Rule 6 of the said Rules. The IndependentDirectors are also required to
undertake online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by The Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”) within a period of 2 (two) years from the date of inclusion of their names in
the data bank, unless they meet the criteria specifiedfor exemption.

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with provisions contained in the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Dinesh Nagpal will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Board has

recommended their re-election.

Director(s) Disclosure

Based on the declarations and confirmations received from the Directors, none of the Directors of the

Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.
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Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 thefollowing are the
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

(i) Ms. Liberatha Peter Kallat- Chairperson and Managing Director, (redesignated effective 30%
November, 2021).

(ii) Mr. Balaji Srinivasan- Executive Director, (effective 19 October 2021).

(iii) Ms. Giya Diwaan- Chief Financial Officer, (effective 24" September 2021).

(iv) Ms. Rangoli Aggarwal- Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, (effective 19" October 2021).

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company confirming that
they continue to meet the criteria of independence, as prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013, rules made thereunder and Regulations 16 & 25 of the Listing Regulations. The Independent
Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code of Conduct.

16. COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has constituted an Audit
Committee. The Board in its Meeting held on 30® November, 2021 constituted the Audit Committee.

The Committee comprises six Directors as below:

1. Sharadchandra Damodar Abhyankar, Independent Director (Chairperson);
2. Aditi Balbir, Independent Director (Member);

3. Sudhir Jain, Independent Director (Member);

4. Mario Anthony Nazareth, Independent Director (Member);

5. Liberatha Peter Kallat, Managing Director (Member); and

6. Mukesh Yadav, Non-Executive Director (Member).
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Majority of the Members of the Committee are Independent Directors and possess strong accounting and
financial management knowledge.

(B) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has constituted Nomination
& Remuneration Committee. The Board at its Meeting held on 30% November, 2021 re-constituted the

Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The Committee comprises three Directors as below:

1. Sudhir Jain, Independent Director (Chairperson);
2. Aditi Balbir, Independent Director (Member); and
3. Mukesh Yadav, Non-Executive Director (Member).

(C) STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board at their meeting
held on 30™ November, 2021. The Committee comprises of three Directors as below:

1. Mukesh Yadav, Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)
2. Mario Anthony Nazareth, Independent Director (Member); and

3. Liberatha Peter Kallat, Managing Director (Member).

(D) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was constituted by a resolution of our Board dated 30 November,
2021. The Committee comprises of four Members as below:

1. Mukesh Yadav, Non-Executive Director (Chairperson);
2. Liberatha Peter Kallat, Managing Director (Member);
3. Sharadchandra Damodar Abyankar, Independent Director (Member); and

4. Giya Diwaan, Chief Financial Officer (Member).
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(E) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted by a resolution of our Board dated
30" November, 2021. The Committee comprises of three Members as below:

1. Liberatha Peter Kallat, Managing Director (Chairperson);
2. Dinesh Nagpal, Non-Executive Director (Member); and

3. Mario Anthony Nazareth, Independent Director (Member).

(F) INTIAL PUBLIC OFFER (‘IPO’) COMMITTEE

The PO committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated 30" November 2021. The
Committee comprises of three directors as below:

1. Liberatha Peter Kallat, Managing Director, (Chairman);
2. Mukesh yadav, Non-Executive Director Member; and

3. Balaji Srinivasan, Executive Director Member.

17. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION:

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and independent Directors
to maintain the independence of the Board and separate its functions of governance and management.).
Therefore, the Company has adopted Code of Conduct for appointment of Directors and senior
Management Personnel on 24™ November 2021. The Company’s policy on Directors' Appointment,
Removal and Remuneration can be accessed from the website (https://www.dreamfolks.in) of the
Company under the section of Investor Relations.

18. BOARD EVALUATION

Your Company firmly believes that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board that enhances the
Company’s efficiency and performance. Board performance will be assessed against the roles and
responsibilities of the Board as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations. The
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parameters for Board performance evaluation will be to ensure Board’s fiduciary role to protect and
enhance shareholder value.

19. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES OF THE COMPANY

As on the date of this report the Company has one subsidiary namely “Dreamfolks Hospitality Private

Limited”.

A statement containing salient features, performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries
for the year ended March 31, 2022, is attached with the financial statement of the Company in the
prescribed Form AOC-1 as “Annexure — A” and forms part of this report. The entire set of subsidiaries’
financials are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and the same will be
available on the Company’s website, in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

Further, there has been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiary Companies.

During the year under review, our Company did not have any associate or joint venture company, hence

Part — B of Form AOC-1 is not applicable on the Company.

During the year, no company has become and ceased to be the Subsidiary/ Joint Venture and Associate

Company.

20. ANNUAL RETURN:

As per provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act as amended from time to time, the
Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at

www.dreamfolks.in

21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, Your Company has not made any investment or given any loan or provided
anyguarantee or security as prescribed under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

0 oy T R S S
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22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The Annual Report on CSR activities of your Company as required under Section 134(3)(o) read with
Section 135 of the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (CSR
Rules), is provided in “Annexure — B” to this Report.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board has duly identified risk(s) associated with the operation and functioning of the Company.
The Board of Directors of the Company reviews the operation and financial position,from time to time.

Your Company has a risk management framework in place. The risk management framework works at
various levels across the enterprise. These levels form the strategic defence cover of the Company’s risk

management. The Company has an organizational structure for managing and reporting on risks.
24. STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, M/s S S Kothari
Mehta & Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN 000756N), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company from the conclusion of 13" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company till the
conclusion of 18" AGM to be held in the FY 2025-26.

25. SECRETARIAL AUDIT:
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed CS Ankit Tiwari,
Practicing Company Secretary, as Secretarial Auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the FY 2021-2022.The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2021-2022 submitted by the
Secretarial Auditor in prescribed form MR-3 has been annexed hereto marked as Annexure - D and
forms an integral part of this Report. The Secretarial Auditor has one observation to which our reply
thereto is here under:

The Company has filed the required e-form and paid the penalty levied by the Adjudicating Officer in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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26. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The provisions pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

27. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Auditors to the Audit
Committee or the Board under section 143(12) of the Act.

28. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company being an unlisted Company, disclosure of names and other particulars of top ten
employees in terms of remuneration drawn per provisions of Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

29. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PROGRAMME (ESOP):

At present the Company has one ESOP scheme namely “ESOP Scheme 2021”. Besides attracting talent,
the schemes also helped retain talent and experience. The Company has granted ESOPs to the identified
employees of the Company, the details of ESOP granted, vested and exercised during the year are as

follows:

Particulars Details

Options outstanding at the beginning of the finaj NIL

year
Options granted during the financial year 2,351,250
Options vested during the financial year NIL

Options exercised during the financial year NIL
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30. PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits under Rule 2(c) of the Companies (Acceptance ofDeposits)
Rules, 2014 within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

31. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

As required under section 134(3)(c) read with 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm
that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fairview of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and profit of theCompany for that period;

c¢) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assetsof the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of allapplicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and

f) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls on financial statements and such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
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32. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN ATWORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

At Dreamfolks Services Limited, we are committed to provide a healthy work environment that is free
of discrimination and unlawful harassment and that enables employees to work without fear of prejudice,
gender bias and sexual harassment. In keeping with this commitment, your Company expressly and
strictly prohibits any form of employee harassment based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin,
age, disability, or status in any group protected by state or local law. The Company has always
endeavoured for providing a better and safe environment free of sexual harassment at all its workplaces.

Your Company had complied with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rules made thereunder, relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee and had continued conducting workshops and awareness
programs for sensitizing the employees with the provisions of the Act during the year under review.

For the year ended March 31, 2022, no cases of sexual harassment were reported to the Internal
Complaints Committee constituted by the Company.

33. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules prescribed thereunderand the
SEBI LODR Regulations is/will be implemented through the Company’s Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Blower Policy to enable the Directors, employees and all stakeholders of the Company to report genuine
concerns, to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism

and make provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

34. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

In this extraordinary year of pandemic, Your Company continued to stay focused on the health and
wellbeing of its employees. Key initiatives included insurance coverage extension for homehealthcare
services, availability of the Company’s doctor and providing logistics support to employees for essential
services. In addition, we are pleased to report that during the Covid Pandemic, Your Company did not
implement any reduction in work force and any reduction/pay-cuts in salaries payable to its employees
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and also took various initiatives to keep employees engaged with increased connect sessions with
leaders, third party counselling services and other initiatives focused on improving the employees’

resilience and wellbeing.
The Board is pleased to report that considering the challenges faced due to the pandemic nationwide,
Promoters and Employees of the Company voluntarily contributed to the relief efforts of the PM Cares

fund.

35. ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY:

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The
Company's policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner, so as to ensure safety of all
concerned, compliances of environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources. During the

year the Company undertook various environment friendly initiatives such as:

; Growing plants within and outside the premises of Company’s corporate office.
2. Using environment friendly air conditioner gases.
3. Less use of paper and shifting to the electronic data maintenance to the extent possible.

36. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India has been complied with by the Company during the financial year under review.

37. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS:

There are no significant or material orders passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future
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38. CONSERVATION _OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY _ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo etc. are set out in “Annexure-C” which forms part of

this report.

39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the assistance, cooperation and encouragement

extended to the Company by the Company’s customers, Clients and Vendors.

The Directors take this opportunity to place on record their warm appreciation for the valuable
contribution, untiring efforts and spirit of dedication demonstrated by the employees and officers at all
levels, in the sure and steady progress of the Company, despite the unprecedented challenges posed by
the Covid pandemic. The Directors would also like to thank the shareholdersfor their support and
contribution. We look forward to their continued support in future.

Place: Gurugram For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
pate: 0b: 06 L0022 Dreamfolks Services Limited

irperson & Managing Director)
: 06849062
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Annexure-A

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

SI No.

Particulars Details

L Name of the subsidiary Dreamfolks  Hospitality

Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concered, if | 2021-22

different from the holding company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last | INR (Indian Rupees)

date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign

subsidiaries

Share capital

INR 100,000

Reserves & surplus

(INR 79.480)

Total assets

INR 86,090

Total Liabilities

INR 86,090

Investments

NIL

Turnover

NIL

Profit /Loss before taxation

INR 1,800

Provision for taxation

NIL

Profit after taxation

INR 1,800

Proposed Dividend

NIL

Extent of shareholding (in %)

90%
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Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

sold during the year.

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence NIL
operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or NIL

and Joint Ventures:

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

i 9

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2.

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by

the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint

Venture

Extend of Holding (In percentage)

. Description of how there is significant

influence

. Reason why the associate/joint venture is

not consolidated

. Net worth attributable to shareholding as

per latest audited Balance Sheet

Profit/(Loss) for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

CONFIDENTIAL
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1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations:

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:

Place: Gurugram

Date: Ob-0b-2oLL

\ [ { )

Mukesh Yadav

(Director)

DIN: 01105819

Address: M-28, Eldeco Mansion,
Sohna Road, Opposite Omaxe mall,
Gurgaon, Haryana-122001,

Balaji SSwasan

(Director)

DIN: 03512187

Address: Flat No. 272, Delhi Apartments,
Plot No. 15C, Sector 22, Dwarka,

Delhi - 110077

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: AGCPD7019C

FOR S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA AND COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Membership No: 083294
Firm Reg No.: 000756N

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Dreamfolks Services Limited

Address: Flat No. B1501, IREO
Grand Arch,Village Ghata, Sector-48,
Sector-58, Gurgaon-122001

Jyath.

Dinesh Nagpal

(Director)

DIN: 01105914

Address: H. No. 103, Residency Greens
Greenwood City, Sector 46,

opposite Cyber Park, Gurgaon
Haryana-122003

; p’
Rangoli Aggarwal

Company secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No.: A44096
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Annexure - B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-2022

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Every organization has the right to exist in a society. With the right, there comes a duty to
give back the society a portion of what it receives from it. As a corporate citizen we receive

various benefits out of society and it is our coextensive responsibility to pay back in return to

the society.

The CSR Policy of the Company is aimed to improving the quality of the life of the
communities. we serve through long term stakeholder value creation. Accordingly, the CSR
activities/programs were undertaken in line with and as specified in Schedule VII of the Act
to serve and to be seen to serve society and community and create significant and sustained
impact in their lives and provide opportunities for employees to contribute to these efforts

through volunteering.

Our Company strongly believe that the Company plays a very significant role in improving
the quality of the society within which it operates, and the Company can flourish only if it
operates in a society that is healthy, orderly, just and which grants freedom and scope to

individuals and their lawful enterprises.

The CSR Policy recommended by the CSR Committee has been approved by the Board of

Directors and is available on the Corporate Website i.e., www.dreamfolks.in.

The CSR activities of the Company mainly aims towards the Children education. protection,

safety and welfare rights of girls, through programmes and projects having focus on —

e Education on Health & Hygiene

e Health Education & Nutrition Program
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2.  Composition of CSR Committee:
S.No. | Name of Director Designation / Number of | Number of meetings
Nature of meetings  of | of CSR Committee
Directorship CSR attended during the
Committee year
held during
the year
a) Liberatha Peter Chairperson of the 2 2
Kallat Committee and
Managing Director
b) Mario Anthony Member of the 1 1
Nazareth* Committee and
Independent Director
c) Dinesh Nagpal Member of the 2 2
Committee and
Independent Director
d) Mukesh Yadav* Member of the 1 ]

Committee and

Independent Director

*Appointed as member of the CSR Committee on November 30, 2021.

#Ceased to be the member of the CSR Committee w.e.f. November 30, 2021.

o
o R

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

L.

Website Link:

CSR Policy and CSR Projects of the Company

https://www.dreamfolks.in/img/policy/Policy-on-Corporate-Social-

Responsibility Dreamfolks-Services-Limited v1.pdf
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2. Composition of CSR Committee

https://www.dreamfolks.in/corporate-governance

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,2014, if
applicable (attach the report):

Impact assessment of CSR projects was not applicable on the Company, during the

financial year under review.
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Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-Rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required

for set off for the financial year, if any; NOT APPLICABLE

Average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5): INR 230,461,197 /-

CSR Obligations:
S. No Particulars Amount (INR in
Millions)

a) Two percent of Average Net Profit of the 4.61
Company as per section 135(5)

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects OR -
program or activities of the previous
financial years

¢) Amount required to be set off for the -
financial year, if any

d) Total CSR obligation for the financial 4.61

year (7a+7h- 7¢)
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f) Excess amount for set off, if any-NIL

CONFIDENTIAL

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S1. receding Amount  |Amount IAmount transferred to any fund  |Amount
No. inancial (ransferred [spent in the [specified under Schedule VIIas  |remaining to
Year. to Unspent freporting  |per section 135(6), if any. be spent in
CSR [Financial succeeding
Account  [Year [financial
under (in Rs.). years.
section (in Rs.)
135(6) (in Name of|Amount Date of
Rs.) {the Fund|(in Rs). transfer.
k. 2020-21 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2 2019-20 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. 2018-19 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
TOTAL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): NA

10. In caseof creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NIL

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NIL

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc.: NIL
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(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset): NIL

- Specify the reason(s) if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135 (5).

Not applicable.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dreamfolks Services Limited

Ju”

Liberatha Péter Kallat

(Chair on & Managing Director)
DIN: 00849062

Address: Flat No. B1501, IREO
Grand Arch,Village Ghata,

Sector-58. Gurgaon-122001

Date: 0b:0b+7) pL2

Place: ( M&J"\ELWL
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Annexure-C
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars, as prescribed by Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the

Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and

foreign exchange earnings and outgo, to the extent applicable to the Company, are given below:

a) Conservation of Energy

(1) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

Though your Company does not have energy intensive operation, every endeavour has been made to
ensure the optimal usage of energy, avoid wastage and conserve energy. During the nationwide
lockdown announced by the Government of India we have transitioned substantial part of the work to
be performed by our employees while working from home resulting in substantial reduction in energy

consumption.

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy
The Company being a technology company, its operations are not energy intensive, and the energy
consumption and energy costs constitute a very small portion of the total cost. The steps taken by the

Company for utilising alternate sources of energy are not significant.

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment

We constantly evaluate new technologies and makes appropriate investments to be energy efficient for
example using energy efficient equipment and devices, replacing CFL fittings with LEDs fittings to
reduce power consumption, timely preventive maintenance of equipment. The air is conditioned with
energy efficient compressors for central air conditioning and with split air conditioning for localized

areas.
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b) Research and Development

We have developed our platforms in-house which has enabled us to better manage our service offerings

and improve operating efficiencies by integrating our sales, delivery and service functions.
¢) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The total foreign exchange used and earned by the Company during the year as compared with the

previous year is as follows:

Financial Year ended (in INR millions)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Particulars

Foreign exchange earnings NIL 1.40

Foreign exchange expenditure 0.03 NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dreamfolks Services Limited

a Peter Kallat

person and Managing Director)
DIN: 06849062
Address: Flat No. B1501,
[REO Grand Arch, Village Ghata,
Sec. 58, Gurgaon, Haryana-122001

Place: Gurugram

Date: Ob . 062022
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{A peer reviewed unit)

FORM NO. MR-3 Anm e -D
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)]

To,

The Members

DREAMFOLKS SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U51909DL2008PLC177181
22,DDA FLATS PANCHSHEEL PARK,
SHIVALIK ROAD NEW DELHI-110017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by DREAMFOLKS
SERVICES LIMITED(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,
2022("Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31,
2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder:

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made
thereunder;




(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment(“FDI"), Overseas Direct
Investments (“ODI") and External Commercial Borrowings(“ECB”). (No fresh
FDI and ECB was taken and no ODI was made by the Company during the
Audit Period)

v)

-

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a)

b)

g)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;(Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; ( SEBI "ICDR" Regulations)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021(Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client; (Not applicable as the Company is not
registered as Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agent during
the Audit Period)

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity

Shares)Regulations, 2009 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India




(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period).

The company is a leading Airport lounge access aggregator and providing an end-to-
end technology solutions for designing and delivering services that enhance the
airport experiences and as per the information provided and confirmed by the
Management, no sector specific law applicable on the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (SS-1 and SS-2). '

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE
Limited( "BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India( "NSE"). (Not
applicable to the Company during the period as the Company is
not listed with any of the stock exchange(s).

During the audit period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except that
an adjudication order has been passed by the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi &
Haryana under section 454 of the Act imposing penalty on the Company and its
Managing Director for delay in filing form SH-7 as required under section 64 of the Act
which has been paid.

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive, Non-Executive, Women and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notice of at least seven days (except few Board meetings which were
held at shorter notice in compliance with the Act) was given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting in compliance of the Act.

3. All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out unanimously and recorded in
the minutes of the Meetings. Further as informed, no dissent was given by any




director in respect of resolutions passed in the Board meetings.

Based on the compliance mechanism established by the Company we further report
that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has undertaken the
following event / action which may be construed as major in pursuance of above
referred laws, rules, regulations; guidelines, standards etc.

1.

Ordinary Resolution was passed by the members at its Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on September 10, 2021 to alter the Memorandum of Association of
the company under section 61 of the Act for sub-division existing of authorised
share capital of the Company from Rs. 5.00,00,000/-( Rupees Five Crores)
consisting of 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 5,00,00,000/-( Rupees
Five Crores) consisting 0f2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each.

Ordinary Resolution was passed by the members at its Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on September 14, 2021 to alter its Memorandum of Association of
the company under section 61 of the Act for increasing the Authorised Share
Capital of the Company from Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores Only ) divided
into 2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.2/- (Rupees Two) each to Rs. 135,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifteen Crores Only ) divided into 7,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.2/-
each. ‘

The Board of directors of the company vide its board resolution dated September
25, 2021 has allotted 2,85,00,000 (Two Crore Eighty Fifty Lakh) Bonus equity
shares of Rs. 2/- each in the ratio of 1:1.2 to their existing shareholdersat par
aggregating to Rs. 5,70,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crore Seventy Lakh only) in
compliance of the provisions sections 63 of the Act read with rules made
thereunder.

Special Resolution was passed by the members at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on September 29, 2021 to approve the Employee Stock Option Plan
2021 (“ESOP 2021”) and granting of options to employees of the company
pursuant to section 62(1)(b) of the Act.

Special Resolution was passed by the members at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on October 20, 2021 to

adopt new set of Articles of Association of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of section 14 of the Act.

convert the status of company from private Limited company to Public Limited
Company under section 18 Companies Act, 2013 and alter the Memorandum of
Association of company under section 13 of the companies Act, 2013 by altering
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the Name clause and changing the name of the company from Dreamfolks Services
Private Limited to Dreamfolks Services Limited.

The company became a Public Limited Company w.e.f. November 23, 2021
consequent to issue of Fresh Certificate of Incorporation by Registrar of
Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana.

6.  The Board of directors of the company vide its Board resolution dated January
21, 2022 approved and adopted Draft Red Herring Prospectus for the
proposed initial public offer  comprising of offer of sale of up to
21,814,200Equity Shares of the Company for filing with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI"), NSE and BSE and other appropriate
Authorities, as the case may be, in accordance with the Act, and the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

The Company has filed the DRPH with SEBI, BSE & NSE and also received in
principal approval from BSE & NSE on February 22, 2022 and from SEBI on
May 9, 2022 respectively.

7. Special Resolution was passed by the members at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on November 25, 2021 under Section 180(1)}c ) of the Act
authrorising Board of Directors of the Company to borrow money from time to
time for increasing the Borrowing Power of the Company not exceeding to Rs.
10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores only):

Thanks & Regards
Date :06.06.2022
Place : New Delhi
UDIN No.: A065026D000655143
ANKIT TIWARI

Practicing Company Secretary
ACS, MBA, B. Com.
ACS No.: 65026

C.P.No.: 24431
Peer Review No.: 2153/2022
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csankittiwari@gmail.com

+91 9953894184

(A peer reviewed unit}

To,

ANNEXURE 1

The Members

DREAMFOLKS SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U51909DL2008PLC177181
22,DDA FLATS PANCHSHEEL PARK,
SHIVALIK ROAD NEW DELHI-110017

Sub:

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the Audit Period is to be read along with
this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of

the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our Audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.




7. As per the information provided by the Company, there are no pending cases
filed by or against the Company which will have major impact on the
Company.

Thanks & Regards
Date :06.06.2022
Place : New Delhi
UDIN No.: A065026D000655143

Practicing Company Secretary
ACS, MBA, B. Com.

ACS No.: 65026

C.P.No.: 24431

Peer Review No.: 2153/2022
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